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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. And thank you all for coming. I know we

          4  have been running a little late, but, obviously, you

          5  know, the budget is a priority, and one of the main

          6  issues that we're going to be discussing in our

          7  organizational meeting is the Education Budget, the

          8  Capital Plan, so we have to get information on that.

          9                 But let's just go around for intros,

         10  if you don't mind, because we're 19 members on the

         11  Committee. Even though all of the members know each

         12  other, we want to make sure that you know all of the

         13  staff around the table, and especially the Education

         14  Committee staff that are here. So, let's go around

         15  starting with myself.

         16                 RJ, Robert Jackson, representing the

         17  7th District.

         18                 Mark.

         19                 MR. GOLDEY: I'm Mark Goldey, I'm

         20  Counsel to the Education Committee for a few more

         21  weeks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Everybody, if

         23  you don't mind, we're going to have to share mikes,

         24  so pull the mike over to you, Yvette, so that

         25  everyone -- this is being recorded, even though it's
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          2  an organization meeting. It's a formal hearing of

          3  the Education Committee.

          4                 Press it again.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Council Member

          6  Yvette D. Clarke, 40th Council District. A new

          7  member to the Education Committee.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Welcome.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Dan

         11  Garodnick, representing the 4th District in

         12  Manhattan. A new member of the Committee, new member

         13  to the Council.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Double welcome.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Miguel

         16  Martinez, also a new member to the Education

         17  Committee, representing the 10th District,

         18  Washington Heights.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Melinda Katz,

         20  29th Council District, Queens. Also a new member of

         21  Education.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Oliver

         23  Koppell, 11th District, Bronx. I've been here

         24  before.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I like the way
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          2  you said that, Oliver.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Jessica

          4  Lappin, 5th District, Manhattan.

          5                 New to the Committee and new to the

          6  Council. I'm getting hazed as proof.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Maria del

          8  Carmen Arroyo, 17th District in the Bronx. New to

          9  the Committee, so so new to the Council.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Simcha Felder,

         11  44th Council District.

         12                 I want to apologize in advance. I

         13  have to pick my daughter up at 3:35. The meeting was

         14  scheduled earlier, I thought I would be able to stay

         15  longer. So it has nothing to do with anything anyone

         16  says when I leave the room in a few minutes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, your staff

         18  member is going to be here, Simcha?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm going to

         20  have her come down.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Excellent. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I apologize.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead. All

         25  the way around.
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          2                 MS. McKENNEY: Latonia McKenney,

          3  Assistant Director for Infrastructure in Education,

          4  Finance Division.

          5                 MR. ROTAS: Jeff Rotas, Deputy

          6  Director, Capital, Finance Division.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Lew Fidler.

          8  New to the Education Committee.

          9                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Frank Tramontano,

         10  First Deputy Director, Finance Division.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: David Yassky,

         12  33rd District. I, too, will be going to pick up

         13  Simcha's daughter very shortly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Don't you dare

         15  touch my daughter.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: But my able

         17  staff member, Mary Lou Bradley will be here through

         18  the remainder of the hearing.

         19                 MS. SALIMI: Scheherazade Salimi, I'm

         20  going to be the Counsel to the Committee.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Jimmy Vacca

         22  from the Bronx. How are you? New to the Committee.

         23                 MS. CULP: Jennifer Culp. Policy

         24  Analyst to the Committee.

         25                 MS. LEMMEY: Ingrid Lemmey from

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  Queens, Senior Policy Analyst for Education.

          3                 MS. JIMA: Jo Jima (phonetic) City

          4  Council Finance Division Analyst.

          5                 MS. ATWELL: And I'm Jan Atwell, a new

          6  Policy Analyst to the Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Al Vann,

          8  introductions, please.

          9                 Introduce yourself.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Councilman Al

         11  Vann.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: From Brooklyn,

         13  right? The great borough of, County of Kings.

         14                 Okay, well, thanks, all, for coming.

         15  You have the agenda in front of you. This is an

         16  organizational meeting for us to assess who we are,

         17  what we're about, to see each other and to talk

         18  about where we're going as a team, some of the

         19  issues and concerns we want to have hearings on, and

         20  what are the priorities as far as short-term and

         21  long-term.

         22                 So, from a hearing logistics point of

         23  view, you know, the schedule, we're trying to

         24  designate meeting days now through the end of June,

         25  which is as much as we can designate as far as days.
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          2  I ask whether or not we could designate days

          3  throughout the entire year, and they said, no, only

          4  through June, and that we can pick up again.

          5                 And also, we're going to try to hold

          6  meetings, if we can, and the staff is looking into

          7  this, on Wednesdays, not Wednesdays at the Stated

          8  Meetings, or off Wednesdays.

          9                 And I would like to try, if possible,

         10  lock those in so you can lock it in your schedules,

         11  so that, you know, we can have the, as far as

         12  Education Committee, we'll have the highest rate of

         13  attendance out of all of the committees, because

         14  they said there is a $10,000 reward for the

         15  Committee that has the highest attendance rate. We

         16  get a party, a pizza party like in school.

         17                 Now, but we really want to try to

         18  lock it in. And obviously, because of the size of

         19  this Committee, you know, we cannot meet on the 14th

         20  Floor hearing room, because there is only about 12

         21  slots there, and we will literally be fighting for

         22  slots as to who can sit where. So, we can only

         23  really hold hearings either in the Chambers or in

         24  the Committee Room. Those are the only two

         25  locations. And everyone wants to be able to meet in
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          2  those locations, we're just trying to lock in the

          3  dates and schedules in advance.

          4                 And obviously, you know, there are

          5  going to be times when we need to hold hearings

          6  immediately, and so things may change, but I want to

          7  try to let everyone know that we're going to have a

          8  schedule, and we're going to try to stick to that

          9  particular schedule.

         10                 Someone asked me whether or not you

         11  have a list of all of the Committees that were held

         12  under the former Chair. I think there was

         13  approximately a total of 125, something like that,

         14  but reality of approximately about 106 or 110, and

         15  you have the list in front of you and when the

         16  hearings were held.

         17                 If you don't have it, just raise your

         18  hand and we'll get it to you. I did not believe that

         19  we would hold as many hearings as my predecessor,

         20  and someone said, asked me the question, well, how

         21  many hearings do you think that we're going to hold?

         22  You know, technically and legally, I think we're

         23  supposed to have one hearing a month, and so I think

         24  holding approximately three hearings every two

         25  months is not unreasonable, considering how
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          2  important education is. So, that's what my thought

          3  is, but I wanted to throw my thought out to you, and

          4  when we're discussing these issues to try to come to

          5  a consensus on how the numbers we should proceed

          6  with and what subject topics and so forth and so on.

          7                 But also, as far as protocol,

          8  obviously, you know, depending on what the issue is,

          9  if you have every member that shows up to the

         10  Education Committee hearing, if every member asks

         11  one question, and that question and answer to that

         12  question just takes five minutes, just one question,

         13  that's an hour and 35 minutes.

         14                 And as you know, you have other

         15  members that are not on the committees that will

         16  come to hearings depending on what the topic is, and

         17  they also would like to speak. So, as far as

         18  questions and answers regarding, you know, we are

         19  going to ask you to stay focused on the issue that

         20  is being discussed at the hearing.

         21                 Sometimes, as you know, especially in

         22  the Preliminary Budget hearings, you know, it's wide

         23  open, but with respect to the hearing topics, we

         24  want you to stay on topic. Because you know, have

         25  you watched, what is it, Appollo on TV, where if
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          2  you're a bad singer, the hook comes out and they

          3  ring the siren and they pull you off the stage

          4  because, you know, you're really that bad, and no

          5  one wants to communicate with the Council member

          6  that, either, one, you're taking too long,

          7  considering the fact that the hearing is only

          8  scheduled for a certain period of time, say three

          9  hours, and knowing that it takes, if every member

         10  asks one question, that's an hour and 35 minutes

         11  right there.

         12                 So, we want to make sure that you

         13  have the opportunity to ask questions. And number

         14  two, that your colleagues have an opportunity to ask

         15  questions; and, number three, that the goals and

         16  objectives of the hearing that we're going there to

         17  achieve, that we accomplish that within the time

         18  frame. And I think that I will try to stay focused

         19  on that. And if you have served with me before on

         20  the Contracts Committee, and several members here

         21  have, the way I've always operated is I don't ask

         22  questions first, questions are given, every member

         23  has them in front of them, and members have the

         24  opportunity to ask questions first.

         25                 And, so, that's the way I plan on
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          2  continuing. Obviously, we're going to try to get you

          3  all the material in advance by e-mail or whatever

          4  contact that you wish, and that's why we're trying

          5  to verify, you know, as far as for the education

          6  staff, your cell numbers, your e-mail, your fax

          7  number, besides you, who is your primary contact for

          8  education so that when we send that information to

          9  your primary contact, so when we call your office,

         10  like we call some of them and following up to the

         11  survey, they said, well, we don't have it, where did

         12  you fax it to? Who did you send it to? Quite

         13  frankly, we don't want to hear that. I don't want to

         14  hear that, especially when you're telling me that

         15  your primary contact for this, then we expect that

         16  individual to be responsible enough, who ever your

         17  primary contact is, to make sure that you, as a

         18  member, are informed about what's going on.

         19                 And that's why we have an obligation,

         20  myself and the staff, to get you that, and we're

         21  going to try to get you all of the papers, not the

         22  day before, but wherever possible, two to three

         23  business days before, so you have an opportunity to

         24  read it, hopefully. And I know that, listen, I'm a

         25  member just like you and I know how difficult it is,

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  but at least you're going to have it, or your

          3  education point person will have it in order to do

          4  that.

          5                 But also, I've said loud and clear,

          6  though, that me as the Chair, even though there's 19

          7  members on the Committee and Speaker Quinn sort of

          8  mentioned this overall, quite frankly, while 19

          9  members is a lot of members on the Committee, I

         10  don't want members to be a name only. So, I truly

         11  expect all of you to attend every meeting, because I

         12  want to win the attendance prize, as I indicate,

         13  just keep that in mind, the attendance prize, a

         14  pizza party at the end of the semester.

         15                 But seriously, if members are in name

         16  only and they're going to be absent, then they're

         17  not going to be in sync with the Education Committee

         18  on the issues that's being discussed, on the team as

         19  a whole as we move forward.

         20                 And one of the things I may request

         21  and talk to them about is their attendance, and, if

         22  necessary, if there's a protocol established in the

         23  Council to remove them from the Committee, then, you

         24  know, to move in that direction. Because as you

         25  know, Education is one of the top priorities in the
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          2  City. The Mayor has announced that, we all know that

          3  as far as our districts are concerned, and I think

          4  that I want to try to move forward as quickly as

          5  possible, being very specific and to the point, and

          6  trying to cover all of the areas that we need to

          7  cover.

          8                 Now, I just want to throw open on the

          9  issue of hearing logistics. Any questions, comments

         10  or concerns about anything that I've discussed so

         11  far? Oliver?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         13  first of all, congratulations. We're delighted to

         14  have you as the Chair of this Committee. I know no

         15  one more committed to our kids than you.

         16                 Let me say that I have served on this

         17  Committee for four years, and while I had the

         18  greatest regard for Eva, and I think she did some

         19  very good things, there were certain things, and I'm

         20  not, as making an assumption, Mr. Chairman, that you

         21  would do the same things. But I might as well at

         22  this point raise it in the absence of your doing

         23  anything, because I was reluctant sometimes to raise

         24  it with Eva because she was going along and it would

         25  be a criticism. So, when I raise it now, it's not a
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          2  criticism of you because you haven't done anything

          3  yet. I liked all the things that you said about how

          4  you run the hearings, that you let members ask

          5  questions, and I don't see anything wrong, by the

          6  way, with the Chair asking a few questions, I did

          7  have a problem when the Chair of this Committee, and

          8  some other committees, take an hour asking questions

          9  before the members ask any questions, because for

         10  one thing, that's very tiresome, but it also doesn't

         11  create involvement.

         12                 The other thing that I would say is

         13  that I believe this Committee, as other Committees,

         14  this is a Committee, and you, when you speak as

         15  Chair of this Committee you have a great deal of

         16  force and you have the right to say anything you

         17  want as Chair of the Committee, but if you're going

         18  to say the Committee believes this, or the Committee

         19  is issuing this report, at the very least, I believe

         20  the members of this Committee have a right to the

         21  information before you speak in the name of the

         22  Committee.

         23                 You can then speak in the name of the

         24  Committee, and then I can say, if I happen to

         25  disagree, I dissent. I think it's also good, you
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          2  know, to make sure that a majority agrees with you.

          3                 There were many times over the years

          4  when the Education Committee issued announcements of

          5  doing something, as the Committee, not as the Chair,

          6  and I didn't even know that it was going to happen,

          7  let alone concur in it. Mostly I concurred, but

          8  sometimes I didn't.

          9                 I mean, an example of that is right

         10  on our desks right here. It says here, Education

         11  Budget Guide for Parents, and then it says Eva

         12  Moskowitz, Chair, Education Committee. Well, I'm not

         13  sure this booklet was given out -- I don't know, did

         14  she print it? Or was it printed by the Council? It

         15  seems to me that this is very inappropriate. I mean,

         16  at the very least it should have said Education

         17  Committee and then Eva Moskowitz, Chair.

         18                 But the point is, if I'm going to be

         19  a member of this Committee, I would appreciate that

         20  the Committee act as a Committee, not just the

         21  Chair. And that doesn't take anything away from your

         22  ability as the Chair to announce anything you want.

         23  That's you're prerogative as a Councilman, in fact,

         24  as a citizen. But if you act in the name of the

         25  Committee, I would appreciate at the very least
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          2  knowing in advance and giving a chance to comment on

          3  it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Point well

          5  taken. And that's why, as far as the contact list,

          6  it's extremely important that your information is up

          7  there, because clearly we want to be able to

          8  communicate with you on a continuous basis about

          9  what is going on, and especially if there is

         10  something hot, that needs to be communicated

         11  immediately. So, e-mail and fax and your mailbox, I

         12  mean those are the avenues that we've been using,

         13  and so contact information, and asking who your

         14  primary education person is, whether it's your Chief

         15  of Staff or whoever else, is important in the

         16  process.

         17                 Other questions or comments? Council

         18  Member Yassky.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I think your

         20  point about questions is very, very right on target.

         21  I would suggest that you consider a five-minute or a

         22  seven-minute rule where Council members have five

         23  minutes or seven minutes to answer questions, and

         24  we'll go down the line, and then if you want to do a

         25  second round, that's enough, you can do a second
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          2  round, but that really assures that everybody gets

          3  their chance.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any other

          5  thoughts or comments?

          6                 What about what Council Member Yassky

          7  had to say? Comments on that? Al, what do you think?

          8                 Any other questions and comments?

          9  Because I think that clearly everyone needs to know

         10  that, you know, they have the opportunity to speak.

         11  So, for example, if we take the five-minute or

         12  seven-minute rule, and if you want to, you know, you

         13  want to talk about an issue in your district, for

         14  five minutes before you ask one question, and your

         15  seven minutes is up and you ask one question and

         16  it's one answer, okay?

         17                 Melinda, go ahead. Council Member

         18  Katz.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Wouldn't that be

         20  something that might be better to do on a

         21  case-by-case basis? There might be hearings where

         22  there's only 12 of us there, it's not a hugely

         23  controversial issue, but maybe it matters more to

         24  Council Member Felder and Council Member Vacca than

         25  it does to me, maybe they need ten minutes, I only
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          2  need one quick question answered. That might be

          3  something that we might want to leave at the

          4  prerogative of the Chair on the day of the meeting,

          5  as opposed to a standard rule.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right. I just

          7  think that people need to know coming in. I think

          8  flexibility is extremely important in this process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You also may not

         10  know coming in. You may have a commissioner that

         11  says I have til 2:00, no problem, or you may have a

         12  commissioner that says I'm only here til 12:30. You

         13  know, look, I am not one of the believers on time

         14  limits on people, even though as most of you know, I

         15  don't speak very long. My own thing is we have

         16  session every other week, this Committee is going to

         17  meet three times every two months. To me, coming

         18  from the Assembly, where you spend eight hours a day

         19  on the floor, is just a little bit of a different

         20  maybe dynamic.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think that one

         22  of the things also, from a hearing process point of

         23  view, one thing that I observed, and many of you

         24  also I'm sure have observed this, is that in the

         25  hearing process, you know, you get the head of the
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          2  agency or department there, and they may be there

          3  anywhere from an hour to two hours, and the hearing

          4  is scheduled for four hours, and quite frankly, you

          5  look around you and most of the members are gone.

          6                 And the advocates, whether those are

          7  for or against the subject, and then also the

          8  community, members of our constituents that are

          9  there to give testimony and they look around and

         10  they see one or two members there and the staff

         11  there, and they're saying where did everyone go?

         12                 And, so, I guess, you know, if

         13  there's a hearing ideally, you know, we want you to

         14  clearly look at your schedule and stay for the

         15  entire hearing. And especially for the new members,

         16  in my opinion the new members, the longer you stay,

         17  the more you learn and quickly come up to speed.

         18  Especially for the new members.

         19                 Questions or comments? Miguel

         20  Martinez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes, Mr.

         22  Chair. I also want to concur with Melinda. As you

         23  know how passionate, you know, education issues

         24  could get, and especially when we're debating or

         25  challenging, I would say, the authorities at the
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          2  Department of Education, specifically when it comes

          3  up to the numbers that they come up with and present

          4  to us, in terms of school capacity, in terms of, you

          5  know, even their budget. I would say that, you know,

          6  depending on the circumstances, and the amount of

          7  members that we have. Sometimes you may have the

          8  time to ask one question, and the response that you

          9  may be getting from them, it may be a 15-, 20-minute

         10  response. You may have a follow-up question on the

         11  same issue.

         12                 So, I totally respect the idea of

         13  having everybody have the opportunity to speak. I

         14  guess I was just mentioning to Council Member

         15  Koppell that I participated twice I believe in the

         16  Education Committee, and I had to leave, I didn't

         17  have time to ask a question because the Chair was

         18  asking questions for about an hour and a half.

         19                 But I think depending on the issue,

         20  the circumstances that arise, you know, we should

         21  have that flexibility.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, and I truly

         23  understand that. And one of the clear messages that

         24  I'm going to be communicating to DOE and SCA and

         25  whoever comes in front of us, is that we want them,
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          2  as far as setting a tone, as Chris Quinn talked

          3  about, as far as this budget dance, we're looking at

          4  it differently, I want their answers to be to the

          5  point. And in fact, if they don't know, just say you

          6  don't know and get back to us. Don't give me a

          7  bureaucratic answer. I've heard enough of that. And

          8  quite frankly, as members, members want specific

          9  answers to specific questions, and that's the tone

         10  we're going to try to set. And I do understand that

         11  sometimes some people use that as a strategy, they

         12  would just talk and talk in five to seven minutes to

         13  answer, and you figure five or six people, that's

         14  already 45 minutes and then their time as far as

         15  gone. And, so, that's why I said stay in focus on

         16  what the goals and objectives of the hearing to make

         17  sure that the entire, what you're trying to obtain

         18  in the hearing process is obtained.

         19                 Anything else on hearing logistics

         20  and comments on that? Okay.

         21                 Capital budget strategy?  Okay.

         22                 Presentation on the history, current

         23  status and time line? Mark, are you going to do

         24  that?

         25                 MR. GOLDEY: Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Mark

          3  Goldey, Counsel to the Committee.

          4                 You know, you introduced a lot of

          5  people, Mark Goldey, who is the Counsel to the

          6  Committee for approximately three years. Mark is

          7  going to be leaving us. It could be a week, it could

          8  be a month, it could be two months. I said to him I

          9  hope it's later, he's hoping it's sooner. He's going

         10  to work I think at DOT in the General Counsel's

         11  Office. And Scheherazade is new counsel to the

         12  committee, so she is transitioning with Mark. So,

         13  she's transitioning with the Committee. So, that's

         14  good, because Mark has the experience here for three

         15  years with us.

         16                 Mark, do you want to walk us through?

         17                 MR. GOLDEY: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 The Counsel has an opportunity, in

         19  fact an obligation, to vote on the capital plan for

         20  education some time this spring, and because there

         21  are new members on the Committee, that would be

         22  helpful to explain why we're here and what's

         23  actually going to happen.

         24                 What we heard today from the Mayor

         25  was there's not enough money to go around, and no
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          2  one needs me to explain that, so that's not what

          3  this is about.

          4                 For a couple of decades, the Board of

          5  Education controlled capital expenditures and

          6  building for City schools, and because they were not

          7  accountable to anyone, they never made accurate

          8  estimates, they never got anything finished, it was

          9  a mess. And as part of the Mayoral Control Law a

         10  couple of years ago, the Mayor and the City Council

         11  now have to approve the capital plan. And in

         12  addition, the Council negotiated that it has to

         13  approve annual amendments to the plan. And although

         14  the time line on that is a little big, basically

         15  it's this spring, and if we do not approve the

         16  amendment, the plan either doesn't go forward or at

         17  least stays, you know, stuck where it is, and that

         18  gives the Council some leverage over the contents of

         19  the capital plan, in other words, what gets built.

         20  And the plan is this document that some of you have

         21  seen. It's enormous. And what it's supposed to do is

         22  to list every project that the City is going to

         23  build, every major construction, every major repair,

         24  whatever, in some detail. And it really is supposed

         25  to be a planning document. And up until a few years
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          2  ago, it really never was. So, we are in a better

          3  position than we have been, despite the document's

          4  flaws.

          5                 So, what's the problem? The problem

          6  is that the Department of Education of the City

          7  would need to spend $20 billion to bring our schools

          8  up to code, and we don't have $20 billion. Indeed,

          9  before this plan was issued, the capital commitment

         10  that the Mayor proposed is about four and a half

         11  billion dollars over five years, and through some

         12  political maneuvering by this Committee and others,

         13  we managed to up that ante to about $13 billion over

         14  five years. But half that money we are expecting to

         15  come from the State, as a result of the CFE

         16  litigation or by some other means. And when we

         17  approved this plan, we knew that the money was not

         18  in the plan, and everything listed in this book

         19  could not be built within five years because the

         20  money wasn't there. Still, we could not have gone

         21  forward and said, well, we don't really need the

         22  money. By the way, there's this lawsuit where we say

         23  we need the money. So, obviously, the plan has to

         24  include the need, and it still does reflect that.

         25                 However, there is about a $1.3
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          2  billion a year unfunded through this plan, and the

          3  proposed shortfall, or expected shortfall for the

          4  fiscal year that's about to end is $1.8 billion, and

          5  another, I think, $1.7 billion next year.

          6                 The plan is not going to change to

          7  remove those items. They still need to be built. And

          8  we expect that the State will meet its obligations

          9  and it will be built, but it's not going to be built

         10  this year, and it's unlikely to be built next year,

         11  if the money is not available.

         12                 And where that leaves us is with a

         13  choice. The City can find money of its own in the

         14  interim to make up the State's obligation until the

         15  State gets around to paying.

         16                 The City could say, you know what?

         17  We're not going to do it this year. The City can go

         18  somewhere down the middle. But whatever the City

         19  chooses to do, we have to do it through the

         20  mechanism of voting on an amendment to the capital

         21  plan, as well as a budget modification that would

         22  accompany it, and I apologize to the new members,

         23  this may be Greek. And then come June, when we

         24  actually pass the budget, again we have to pass a

         25  budget and approve a plan by that time. And that's
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          2  where our leverage lies, we don't get to veto

          3  things, we don't get the line item, and we simply

          4  say yes or no. But because of that, we have the

          5  ability to negotiate with the Department of

          6  Education on what gets built. And the question to

          7  the Committee, which we'll have to get into in some

          8  detail, is what's the Council's position going to be

          9  with respect to the Mayor's Office on how much

         10  money, capital money, gets put into education? Where

         11  is it going to come from? You know, are we willing

         12  to borrow it? Are we willing to go to Albany and

         13  beat our heads against the doors? What are we going

         14  to do in the course of that negotiation?

         15                 A lot of that, you know, probably

         16  wouldn't be discussed at open hearing, but that's

         17  something that the Council, the Committee first has

         18  to take up, and then the Council will have to take

         19  up. Really by March 1st we're going to get the

         20  amendment, so if we are planning on saying to the

         21  Mayor we are not going to accept this because it

         22  removes too much money for construction that

         23  children need and they need now, then the Council

         24  has to be prepared to do that sooner, rather than

         25  later, and that's why the Committee needs to take
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          2  this up shortly.

          3                 And while the Chair is still

          4  occupied, just briefly, the sort of options we have

          5  are to, you know, borrow against our own credit, and

          6  put that money towards school construction. We could

          7  take money from other capital projects. We could try

          8  to borrow money using creative financing mechanisms.

          9  We could go to Albany and do politics. We can do

         10  whatever we like, that's a question for the

         11  leadership and the members to figure out. But the

         12  bottom line message is whatever, whatever we're

         13  doing we should be doing in the next four to six

         14  weeks.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Questions?

         17  Oliver and Jim.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Last year you

         19  did mention, and for those of us who were here, we

         20  remember, obviously, but the new members are not

         21  maybe aware of this, last year we had the same

         22  situation where the City expected half of the 13

         23  billion, I guess it is, right? to come from the

         24  State.

         25                 MR. GOLDEY: 1.3 last year.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Half of the

          3  first part, I'm sorry.

          4                 So, that each year was 2.6 and it was

          5  1.3. I'm sorry, I misstated that.

          6                 So, last year we put the Mayor in a

          7  box, basically, and the Mayor agreed to fund, was it

          8  all of the 1.3? All of the 1 -- and how did they get

          9  that? How did they get that money?

         10                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Frank Tramontano.

         11  Basically they took, they frontloaded all the City

         12  money from the outyears. They took 800 million from

         13  Fiscal Year '06, 700 million from Fiscal Year '07,

         14  500 million from Fiscal Year '08, and 400 million

         15  for Fiscal Year '09, something like that, to get to

         16  move it all up into Fiscal Year '05.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And then the

         18  cash was obtained by borrowing? We borrowed the

         19  money?

         20                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's right.

         21                 And what that did is that made the

         22  State portion in those later years even larger.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Bigger.

         24  Right.

         25                 So, it seems to me that we're faced
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          2  right now, that the State, the money that we got

          3  last year, that 1.3 billion was actually for the '05

          4  Fiscal Year? The '05 City Fiscal Year; am I correct

          5  about that?

          6                 So, the '05 City Fiscal Year is done.

          7  So, we got the money last spring to be basically

          8  committed last spring. It had to be committed by

          9  June 30th of '05. Now, we're faced again with

         10  getting that 1.3 billion, 1.8 -- okay, 1.8 by June

         11  30th. Otherwise the plan gets unfunded for a good

         12  part of it, including all kinds of necessary new

         13  construction and renovations.

         14                 And we will know by, presumably by

         15  April 1st whether the State is going to come up with

         16  the money, because the State Budget has to be

         17  adopted by April 1st. And I can tell you that -- it

         18  probably will be, in contrast to prior years -- but

         19  there is no intention on the Governor to come up

         20  with this money at this point. And I don't see that

         21  the legislative leaders are really committed to it

         22  either. As I wish they would be, but I don't think

         23  they are.

         24                 Therefore, we're really in the same

         25  position, it seems to me, as we were last year.
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          2                 And I would say, as much as I regret

          3  it, because I think that the State has the

          4  responsibility, I still would say that we should, if

          5  not come up with the whole 1.8, a substantial share

          6  of that, we should make sure it's there in this

          7  fiscal year, which means make sure it's there by

          8  June 30th, which I think you indicated we have to

          9  do, if we have to do that, we have to do it within

         10  the next couple of months.

         11                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Yes. I mean, the last

         12  budget modification for this year usually happens, I

         13  think there's one in February and another one in

         14  June, and so that's what we get to vote up or down.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

         16                 So, I mean, I think we should do what

         17  we did last year, if the Mayor would agree.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I think that

         19  those are the type of strategies that we're going to

         20  have to discuss, not only in the Education

         21  Committee, but with the Speaker, and with the

         22  leadership. And obviously the issue is being

         23  discussed, a five-year capital plan and unfunded

         24  mandate, you know, and all of that.

         25                 So, it's being discussed, and that's
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          2  why the resolution being put forward by the majority

          3  of all of us, and that's why the letter, is part of

          4  the strategy to turn the heat up on the Governor and

          5  the State Legislature to fund the money.

          6                 Who is next on that? I'm sorry, Jim.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I just wanted

          8  to add that the yellow book that you have there, I

          9  read that basically, and it was on line maybe

         10  several months prior. But that represents basically

         11  a wish list of everything. That represents public

         12  address systems, interior work. I would think that

         13  if we're going to get a commitment of money, if

         14  we're successful in getting more money for

         15  education, we have to be involved, or we should be

         16  involved in so much as suggesting or identifying

         17  sites within our districts where there is a need.

         18                 Like say in my district, they say

         19  that in School District 8 nothing is planned,

         20  nothing is needed, and School District 11 they have

         21  plans for seven buildings, but it's more generic,

         22  they're not really sites except for one or two.

         23                 So, I want the money there, but I

         24  want it to be known that we intend for it to be

         25  spent expeditiously. And I agree with Oliver, we
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          2  have to make a commitment and make it a priority.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Frank, comment

          4  on that?

          5                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Well, the way they

          6  developed the plan is somewhat flawed. We found that

          7  out because it seems they went out there on their

          8  own in terms of projects and they didn't really know

          9  the principals long, they may not have identified

         10  all the places where the needs are, and they put

         11  some things in there that really, aren't really

         12  necessary.

         13                 That's up to you to kind of bring to

         14  the attention where the money should be spent.

         15                 But I think everyone agrees that $13

         16  billion is not enough to do the needs of this

         17  capital plan.

         18                 You've got to remember how they're

         19  stopping the program. The program for the State

         20  funding, they tried to identify with the CFE

         21  lawsuit, though every capacity project, if it wasn't

         22  committed as of December of 2005, will not move

         23  forward.

         24                 So, that means out of the 66,000

         25  seats you were going to get in this plan, 52,000
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          2  aren't happening, and that means 86 out of 107

          3  schools aren't going to be built. Unless we make up

          4  the State funding somehow.

          5                 They lined it up with the CFE lawsuit

          6  that said about building capacity.

          7                 And then there's other changes that

          8  aren't happening, they at least struck all the

          9  capacity projects going forward will not happen for

         10  the next three and a half years, if it's not already

         11  committed. What that means, all the money that we

         12  spent to date, all it means is that, all the

         13  capacity projects to date, from December '05, are

         14  being moved forward. Anything after that is not. And

         15  what that translate to in terms of dollars is 86 out

         16  of 107 schools aren't going to get done.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And the schools

         18  that are not scheduled to be built, according to the

         19  plan, are identified in this. Is this the latest

         20  amendment? Because there were amendments, is that

         21  correct?

         22                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's the latest.

         23  There is going to be another one in mid-February. We

         24  don't expect it to change much. They're all

         25  identified there. Anything that's listed as State
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          2  funding is not moving forward.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And that's why

          4  Speaker Quinn mentioned that we'll be logging a

          5  website that will identify every district,

          6  Councilmatic district, Assembly district, Senate

          7  district. She didn't say congressional, but I would

          8  even extend it to congressional district, so people

          9  can look at that and see what projects are being

         10  negatively impacted as a result of not having the

         11  funds, they can look at their districts, by Council,

         12  Assembly, Senate, it will be on the website.

         13                 Council Member Martinez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: It's also

         15  good to point out that even though, because of the

         16  process, in which this book was presented to us

         17  originally, where, you know, Department of

         18  Education, School Construction just went out there

         19  and they decided which project and which areas they

         20  were going to do repair.

         21                 It is extremely important for members

         22  to go over that and look at the particular schools.

         23  A practice I have is that I contact all my

         24  principals and let them know what they put in there

         25  and what is it that they need, and then take that up
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          2  with the Department of Education. And also bring

          3  that up with the Chair of the Education Committee,

          4  so when we do the hearings on the budget, you know,

          5  try to identify what process took place, and how

          6  could we add these items.

          7                 So, whatever little money there is,

          8  it is extremely important, you know, that those

          9  projects that are there reflect the realities of

         10  your school district and your schools, as opposed if

         11  you have a leaking roof, that they don't go out

         12  there to fix a floor or something. You know what I

         13  mean? Whatever is the priority.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think, Miguel,

         15  yes. And I think also the CECs, those that are

         16  active, the Community Education Councils, some of

         17  them, depending on how active they are Citywide in

         18  their districts, are going out, taking the proposed

         19  amendment and looking at their particular districts

         20  and trying to get feedback by holding local hearings

         21  within their district, and by also, we'll be going

         22  to the Panel for Education Policy and giving

         23  testimony more specific to their districts.

         24                 And, so, from a process point of

         25  view, I think this is the type of action that need
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          2  to take place in order to bring, you know, critical

          3  mass to the decision makers to shift our priorities

          4  so that we're meeting the needs of our children.

          5                 We've been joined by Council Member

          6  Helen Diane Foster of the Bronx and Domenic Recchia

          7  of Brooklyn.

          8                 Questions or comments on this

          9  particular matter?

         10                 Dan Garodnick from Manhattan.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman. Just these are really two questions,

         13  one of which was, I also was surprised to see that

         14  the School Construction Authority was going to the

         15  schools in my district and identifying the needs of

         16  the schools without consulting with the principals

         17  of those schools as to what their particular needs

         18  were. And I appreciate what Council Member Martinez

         19  said about running through this list with the actual

         20  officials in the schools. I'm wondering whether,

         21  what the process and procedure is in fact when

         22  projects are different, the needs are different from

         23  what's actually in that big yellow book that Jimmy

         24  Vacca read from start to finish, what exactly -- oh,

         25  okay, I misunderstood you.

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 The question is, from a procedural

          3  standpoint, you know, what exactly can you do, can

          4  we do to make sure that that accurately reflects the

          5  needs of the schools in the district? And then I

          6  have one other issue.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure. I know

          8  going back when it first came out with the five-year

          9  capital plan proposal, up in District 6 where Miguel

         10  and I, we share, we basically along with the CECs

         11  looked at all of that, we analyzed that, we looked

         12  at, you know, whether or not how they deemed

         13  capacity versus how we deem it, and we went into a

         14  hearing and we basically put pressure on them

         15  because they only had one school in our district, as

         16  far as being built with approximately only 500

         17  seats, we're the most overcrowded district in

         18  Manhattan, and as a result of our activism by the

         19  parents and everything, they put two more additional

         20  schools in the plan, even though they were in the

         21  outyears. And then if you look at it from a

         22  historical perspective, as far as the previous

         23  five-year capital plans, they were never really

         24  fulfilled. There were projects there and they were

         25  never ever dealt with. So, they maybe put them in
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          2  there in order to appease us in the outyears,

          3  probably knowing they would never be built.

          4                 But you need to get in there and work

          5  with the people in your district in order to first

          6  determine whether or not the capacity figures are

          7  correct for each school, and what they have is true

          8  or not true and what your opinion is, whether or

          9  not, you know, you're going to need more seats or

         10  not need more seats, and basically it's a lot of

         11  work.

         12                 Frank.

         13                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Just to make a

         14  suggestion. I think if you come up with a list and

         15  you say I think these are needed and these are not

         16  needed, I think you just make sure everybody knows.

         17  You tell us, you tell them, and you push on it and

         18  you say I want these changes, I want these changes

         19  made because they reflect the real needs of my

         20  community, and just make sure everyone knows about

         21  it, and then we'll follow up on it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: The other

         24  issue was with regard to the actual Campaign for

         25  Fiscal Equity dollars coming, owed to us by the
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          2  State.

          3                 I was at the Mayor's briefing earlier

          4  today, as I know you were, too, Mr. Chairman, and

          5  others in this room. The Mayor did not say too much

          6  on the subject of how exactly to secure the monies

          7  that were owed to us.

          8                 I was just wondering whether there

          9  were any subsequent comments during the course of

         10  the day from that side of City Hall, or if there was

         11  any other indication as to how exactly the Mayor's

         12  side intended to go forward on the capital dollars

         13  needed to accomplish what we need to accomplish in

         14  that book.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I doubt it. It

         16  was not said in our briefing, and I doubt anything

         17  more was said with the briefing with the press or

         18  anyone else. I doubt it very seriously.

         19                 The Mayor has said that his approach

         20  is different than a lot of other people, and quite

         21  frankly, you know, to each his own. But as far as

         22  people of New York City, as far as me as a

         23  legislator that represents the people locally, you

         24  know, his actions are not strong enough in order to

         25  meet my needs, in order to meet the needs of the
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          2  people I represent.

          3                 Now, does anyone else have any

          4  comments on that particular thing?

          5                 Okay, then Yvette Clarke, Jim and

          6  Jessica.

          7                 Yvette.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Chair. Let me first just congratulate you.

         10  I think you're doing an extraordinary job just even

         11  in convening us here to go over the protocols and

         12  the strategies behind which this Committee will

         13  operate.

         14                 I like the tone that you've set. It

         15  says to me that we're willing to roll up our sleeves

         16  and get things done in short order.

         17                 I am concerned about the Capital

         18  Budget and what our strategy will be, given the fact

         19  that that document is almost obsolete at this point,

         20  that it was so flawed to begin with. And I know that

         21  we have to use it as a framework going forward, and

         22  I think there were some very important suggestions

         23  that were made.

         24                 But I'm concerned about our ability

         25  to really target what we're talking about in terms
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          2  of whatever we're able to leverage for capital

          3  funding next year. And how do we sort of wrap our

          4  hands around it when everything has sort of been

          5  almost pushed out, because a lot of what should have

          6  been fulfilled in the early years have not been

          7  fulfilled, and a lot of the things we were relying

          8  on to be fulfilled within the next fiscal year, I'm

          9  sure we'll be coming in conflict with that.

         10                 Is there a conversation going on with

         11  the Administration right now to sort of get our

         12  hands around where we are, where we should be, and

         13  what has happened in the intervening time?

         14                 In other words, have contracts been

         15  let? Is there construction underway? Are we only

         16  dealing with minor repairs? Are we dealing with

         17  actual construction, and how is that being

         18  prioritized?

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, points

         21  well taken. I think that clearly the discussions are

         22  starting to take place, as far as City Council,

         23  Speaker, and the Administration. And in fact, the

         24  Speaker had a meeting with the Mayor even prior to

         25  his State of the City Address, where she indicated
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          2  to him that the whole issue of the Capital Plan in

          3  the Budget is an extremely important issue that is

          4  out there that we are going to have to address. And,

          5  also, I think even today at the press conference.

          6                 So, I think it's clear that this is a

          7  major issue affecting all districts across all

          8  political lines, and that we're going to have to

          9  address it, and that Lew Fidler had said, if you

         10  were at the press briefing, Lew Fidler had said

         11  that, you know, yes, you know, we have to go after

         12  Albany, but, you know, knowing the reality of

         13  Albany, we ideally want the money to come from

         14  Albany, but if it doesn't come, then we have to find

         15  a way in order to make sure that we meet the minimum

         16  obligation to educate our children.

         17                 And, so, we have to talk about

         18  strategies. And some people say, well, they financed

         19  the Hudson Yards' situation to build out the number

         20  7 line and to build huge complexes, where I think 23

         21  percent or whatever will be affordable housing.

         22  They've done a lot of other financing. They talked

         23  about financing, as far as through the Economic

         24  Development Corp, you know, the Bronx Terminal

         25  Market, you know, where there's a will there's a
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          2  way. We're in New York City where the most creative

          3  minds are. We need to come together in order to

          4  strategize ways to do that so that we meet our

          5  immediate needs, and as far as capital needs, that

          6  is, because capital, even if we borrow on that, the

          7  debt ceiling is about -- how much is the New York

          8  City debt ceiling, Frank? Do you want to talk about

          9  that for a second?

         10                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Under the current, as

         11  of the last calculation, about $2.7 billion that you

         12  can use in that ceiling now. But that's going to go

         13  up, because the roll is going to go up, and also

         14  because there's a lot of prepayments that are going

         15  on, that will also rise it. So, you could borrow at

         16  least $2.7 billion against that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And that's just

         18  straight out borrowing, but if you talked also about

         19  this shifting priorities, and that's totally

         20  different.

         21                 So, Lew, did you want to comment on

         22  this subject here?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         25                 Go ahead, Yvette.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Just a quick

          3  follow-up, Mr. Chair. I guess maybe I wasn't

          4  completely clear.

          5                 Is there an opportunity, or are we

          6  going to be taking the opportunity to get to a

          7  reality situation with the capital plan, is more of

          8  what I'm talking about.

          9                 If, indeed, I'm not saying there was

         10  a wish list, and it certainly was an observation on

         11  the part of DOE, and we are seeing that it's coming

         12  in conflict with some of the observations that we're

         13  getting from our own communities, and there is this

         14  push-out with respect to the fact that we don't know

         15  exactly what our financial situation is with the

         16  flaws, will there be an opportunity leading up to

         17  either mid-February, and an amendment would be

         18  coming for it, for us to really try to fine-tune

         19  what is really just a framework that has been put in

         20  place.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I would say yes,

         22  but not in February. It will probably be anywhere

         23  from March to whenever we pass the budget.

         24                 Because quite frankly, there is

         25  clearly going to be a reality check. It may be
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          2  sooner, rather than later. It depends on the

          3  strategies we want to employ. It depends. Because

          4  like last year, one of the strategies was that 48

          5  members out of 51 signed a letter, and including all

          6  three republicans, the only people that really

          7  didn't sign it I believe were people that were

          8  absent, asking the Mayor, we were going to put it

          9  back or we were going to pass a budget, I think

         10  that's what it said. And if you didn't see that, if

         11  you want to see copies of that, you know, just ask

         12  the staff and we'll provide it for you, those new

         13  members that may not have seen that.

         14                 So, there's going to be a reality

         15  check here somewhere. Either we're going to either

         16  pass the amendment, or we're not going to pass the

         17  amendment, and those things that I want us to talk

         18  about, and then we need to talk about that as far as

         19  the leadership of the Council so that we take a

         20  collective, holistic approach to this, and not just

         21  we're recommending this, but it has to be everyone

         22  is buying into it.

         23                 Quite frankly, it is not a very easy

         24  situation to solve, and people are going to have to

         25  make sacrifices, meaning the Mayor priorities are
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          2  going to have to shift from what they are right now.

          3                 Who is next? Jim and then Jessica and

          4  then Lew.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: As a

          6  clarification, when you talk about space, we're also

          7  talking about leases, the School Construction

          8  Authority enters into leases?

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Now, when they

         11  enter into a lease, the lease is an expense budget

         12  item when they lease the space but it's a capital

         13  budget item when they have to renovate the space?

         14                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: All right.

         16                 Do we pursue that matter on both tax,

         17  capital and expense? Do we try to get money in the

         18  budget both ways?

         19                 And what is the input of the local

         20  Councilperson where leased space has been

         21  identified? Does it have to come to the Council as a

         22  lease or as a commitment?

         23                 MR. TRAMONTANO: If you have space

         24  that you want them to look at, just go directly to

         25  the Department of Education and show them the space
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          2  and they'll pursue it.

          3                 As far as, once they make a

          4  commitment to go into a place, they're going to put

          5  the lease money in the budget. There is not going to

          6  be a problem with the lease money.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: But does the

          8  site come to the -- the site that they identify must

          9  at a certain point come to the Council, to a

         10  committee of the Council for approval?

         11                 MR. TRAMONTANO: No. You don't need

         12  Land Use. You generally don't need ULURP. Generally.

         13                 MR. GOLDEY: At best it might go to

         14  Land Use, but the Department of Education --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Two years ago

         16  it came -- I know I had a case, but I don't know

         17  what the role of the Council was, but there was a

         18  role of the Council when the lease was entered into.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED STAFF MEMBER: They come

         20  to the Landmarks Public Siting Subcommittee. If it's

         21  a lease, long-term lease of school space that SCA is

         22  siting, then they do come -- it's not the ULURP

         23  process, but they go through a public siting process

         24  to the Land Use Committee.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I just want to
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          2  be sure that we know. I know that there was a

          3  Council role, and I do know that if there's a

          4  Council role, maybe this Committee would want to

          5  have input into making sure that when they identify

          6  lease space, it's being used to serve a population

          7  that is in overcrowded schools especially, where we

          8  have priorities in our own communities.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's one of

         10  the things that we discussed in the leadership

         11  committee meeting, and which the Education Committee

         12  staff and myself, we were having a discussion as far

         13  as priorities. Because, quite frankly, the way it

         14  operates now, you know, people are scrambling to try

         15  to identify needs in their districts and there are

         16  pressures in quite a number of districts as far as

         17  commitments that were made by DOE to lease or to

         18  build, and which their projects have identified at

         19  risk or on the State list that's not going to be

         20  built. And, so, people will communicate in many

         21  different ways, directly with the Mayor's Office,

         22  directly with the Chancellor, what have you and so

         23  forth.

         24                 And one of the issues, the larger

         25  issues is this: I mean, do we as a Council, as a

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  whole, you know, take a centralized position as far

          3  as what needs to be built versus, you know, as far

          4  as priorities.

          5                 For example, if it takes 1.8 billion

          6  to put everything back in line, then let's assume,

          7  for example, at the bottom line is we get a billion

          8  dollars. So, what projects are going to be built?

          9  Are they going to be built in certain districts

         10  where the need is not the greatest, but where the

         11  political persuasion makes it happen, question mark?

         12  That's a larger issue that was broached with the

         13  leadership, for us, to whether or not we take a

         14  centralized approach to working with the Mayor to

         15  identify what schools are built, what repairs need

         16  to be made, what leases we need to get into, so

         17  forth and so on.

         18                 That issue has not been decided as of

         19  yet. But we have had a preliminary discussion on

         20  that, because, obviously, you know, it can become

         21  very political, obviously.

         22                 Okay, who is next? Jessica, you were

         23  next.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I guess I had

         25  a specific question about the five-year capital
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          2  plan. I mean, as Yvette was saying, that there is

          3  sort of the unreality to it all, and the fact that

          4  we could all say in some districts a lot more than

          5  mine that there is a capacity problem and a need to

          6  build new seats.

          7                 But I guess on the micro scale, terms

          8  of the SCA going in, evaluating the schools, saying

          9  what they need to be done, I guess my question is,

         10  if I went to the principal and said SCA thinks you

         11  need a new boiler or brick work or pointing, they're

         12  going to say, well, no, what I need is a new library

         13  and I need a new computer lab and I really need a

         14  gym.

         15                 So, this is just a logistic question,

         16  logistical question as a new member, I mean so I see

         17  in the book that SCA continue to do X, and I call

         18  the principal and the principal says, no, that's not

         19  what I need, I need a computer lab, I mean what is

         20  the response there?

         21                 I mean, if SCA is saying you need to

         22  repoint the building because the brick facade is

         23  falling down, or your boiler is about to explode or

         24  --

         25                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Yes, let me start by
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          2  saying, you could assume at least in the first

          3  instance that the SCA is acting in good faith when

          4  it says that the brick work needs to be pointed.

          5  That what's in this plan is not, you know, luxury

          6  brick work pointing, it's the stuff that's about to

          7  fall down. And certainly, you're absolutely right,

          8  that the principal in a sense doesn't care about the

          9  outside of the building, only cares about the test

         10  results, and rightly so. But both things are in the

         11  plan. The computer labs and libraries are there as

         12  enhancements, and I believe a lot of those are being

         13  cut out, not surprisingly, in favor of the

         14  foundations and the roofs. There are options for

         15  Council members to get libraries and computer rooms

         16  in schools, including Resolution A money, but also

         17  lobbying the Department of Ed and saying this really

         18  isn't that important, it can wait. And in the end

         19  the structural engineers I think rule that question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Explain to them

         21  what Resolution A money is.

         22                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Resolution A money is

         23  part of the City's budget, the Borough Presidents

         24  and Council Members have an amount of money which is

         25  negotiated with the Mayor and then through the
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          2  Council to spend on capital-eligible projects in

          3  districts or their boroughs, and it can be anything,

          4  not just schools, but it is common to provide what

          5  are unfortunately frills in this City, computer labs

          6  and new books.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I mean, that I

          8  understand. I just sort of, in terms of the advice

          9  given, of going to a principal and saying, you know

         10  -- the SCA says we really need to do X; I guess my

         11  question is what's the end result? The principal

         12  says, yes, you know what, the bricks are falling off

         13  into the street and I'm worried about the kids

         14  coming in and out; or the principal says absolutely

         15  not and I don't think you should be loading for

         16  that, because I really need something else instead.

         17  I guess I'm not understanding what my role.

         18                 MR. TRAMONTANO: There's really only

         19  one conclusion, does it need brick work or not.

         20  That's pretty easy to determine or think, and then

         21  like Mark said, if it's in there for that major

         22  repair, it probably is necessary.

         23                 But the other thing that you should

         24  look at is in this book there's education

         25  enhancements that aren't always identified and
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          2  they're in the out years, and you may be able to

          3  latch onto some of that money, depending on where it

          4  is.

          5                 They don't really identify all the

          6  projects in the plan. So you may be able to identify

          7  additional money for that.

          8                 The brick work needs to be done,

          9  leave it alone, try to find extra money. Unless it's

         10  clearly a mistake by SCA that really didn't need to

         11  be done.

         12                 You should look at the other parts of

         13  the plan that have education enhancements that

         14  aren't really identified, maybe you can get into

         15  those dollars to find the need in the school lab.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And then my

         17  last question, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 Is this something that we're voting

         19  on more than once? Are we voting to an amendment to

         20  the plan and then we're voting again in June with

         21  the full budget?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No. We have to

         23  vote on, every year they will bring an amendment to

         24  the five-year capital plan, and that's what we must

         25  prove.
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          2                 What happened last year, I think it

          3  was tied into the budget process. And what we, we

          4  have to talk about strategy, you know, do we vote it

          5  on before that, do we tie it into the budget?

          6  There's pros and cons in all of that, and that's

          7  what has to be decided, it hasn't been decided as of

          8  yet.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But also, I

         11  wanted Mark to give you and other members just a

         12  little briefing with respects to a briefing as to

         13  the projects that are identified in there, like

         14  facade restoration and what have you, those are the

         15  only items for -- Mark, do you want to talk about

         16  that?

         17                 MR. GOLDEY: The way the plan was put

         18  together is that every year the Department of

         19  Education goes out and it surveys all of its

         20  buildings and rates the various parts of it, the

         21  roof, the floors, the walls, on a scale of one to

         22  five, one being excellent shape and five being

         23  critical for need of repair. And the plan contains,

         24  contained when it started, enough money to repair

         25  all the fives, which are the worst, critical, must
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          2  be done now, and the worst of the fours. I don't

          3  remember what percentages. But three, which is poor

          4  condition, I think, those, everything that's in poor

          5  condition is going to remain in poor condition, even

          6  if every penny were put into this plan.

          7                 Now, certainly it's true that they

          8  can make mistakes, and the SCA is notorious for

          9  doing things like, you know, fixing the lighting

         10  without fixing the wiring behind it, so none of it

         11  works when it's done, and problems like that.

         12                 But it's safe to say that if

         13  something is in this book and it's listed as

         14  electrical upgrades or doors, slabs, things like

         15  that, it probably is something that really should be

         16  done, because it should have been done five years

         17  ago or ten years ago. And unfortunately, the

         18  principals often have no real idea of whether that's

         19  true or not, and we are not engineers, we have to

         20  take it on faith of that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Lew, you're

         22  next.

         23                 Council Member Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 I certainly want to thank you for the

          3  leadership you're showing in making sure that the

          4  amendment to the plan that we pass is realistic.

          5  That's the word. I think, you know, I still feel a

          6  bit of a fool from last year for passing a five-year

          7  capital plan that was predicated upon something that

          8  I would have bet my house wasn't going to happen.

          9  George Pataki was going to cough up the money this

         10  year. And you know, honestly I do feel kind of bad

         11  when I have to face voters in my district and say,

         12  you know, oh, we passed the $13 billion capital plan

         13  knowing that it was not realistic.

         14                 And, so, I think setting the goal

         15  that whatever we do this time is real and tangible

         16  and will happen, I think is a good one.

         17                 Having said that, I want to apologize

         18  for having to get up and leave. I have the Brooklyn

         19  Parks Commission sitting down in my office for a

         20  half an hour, and so if I can just briefly mention

         21  on the hearing topics for the future, that I hope we

         22  will come back to gifted and talented programs in

         23  this City. I still think that that is a hot button

         24  issue, and how DOE has, in fact, diluted what we all

         25  mean by gifted and talented programs, and that seems
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          2  to fall out of the State or the City message this

          3  year. And what might seem like an arcane issue to

          4  some, but something that I've heard from a number of

          5  schools in my district, the issue of whether or not

          6  students should be allowed to possess cell phones in

          7  the school building during the course of the day,

          8  not use them but have them, because many of our kids

          9  are going home late after, if they are participating

         10  in extra curricular activities, perhaps even it's

         11  dark, and traveling on mass transit and their

         12  parents want to be able to reach their kids. And

         13  that seems to be a very, very controversial issue.

         14  Particularly the school has a metal detector, you

         15  know, your cell phone is detected, if it doesn't,

         16  then it's not, and so that's a real policy issue I

         17  hope we can take up.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Concerning

         20  actions, Council's actions preceding the vote, and

         21  obviously, between now, as you know, from the

         22  process, do we have the schedule time frame in here,

         23  as far as the vote on the capital plan?

         24                 Can you walk us through that, so that

         25  we know from the time frame from now and until
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          2  whenever we approve the amendment.

          3                 MR. TRAMONTANO: The schedule is as

          4  follows: Department of Education is going to release

          5  a revision to this document some time in the next

          6  week or two. Soon. And it will then go to the PDP,

          7  the new Board of Education, which will rubber stamp

          8  it at its meeting in February, which is I think the

          9  20 --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Twenty-seventh.

         11                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It then will be

         12  delivered to the City Council and the Mayor. It's

         13  supposed to then go to the Mayor and the Council the

         14  same time. We're supposed to get it shortly

         15  thereafter. We also are going to get the amendment,

         16  which is technically a different document, but what

         17  we'll probably do is just fold it into one document,

         18  and we will get that, we're supposed to get that by

         19  March 1st.

         20                 There is no deadline or time line to

         21  vote on either the amendment or the modifications to

         22  the budget that underlie it. However, it's typically

         23  done by the time that the Council passes the annual

         24  budget, because if not, you've passed a plan without

         25  the money to support it. That doesn't really work.
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          2                 And what has typically happened in

          3  the past is that negotiations on both are folded

          4  into one, and since people are generally unwilling

          5  to hold up the budget for specific items, the

          6  capital plan falls off the table. And so one thought

          7  is that it should be negotiated separately, and,

          8  therefore, has to be dealt with sooner. That means

          9  that the Committee would be taking it up in March.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any thoughts on

         11  that?

         12                 Oliver Koppell. Speak into the mike,

         13  Oliver, please. That's okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm a little

         15  confused. The capital plan that is going to present

         16  it, is that going to be with or without the 1.8

         17  billion that you say we're expecting from the State?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It will probably

         19  be submitted without.

         20                 They, meaning DOE, will submit it to

         21  us without that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I think

         23  it's important for us to have at this point a list

         24  of those things that they cut out.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's already
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          2  identified.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Who

          4  identified it?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They did.

          6                 Go ahead, Frank.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But we

          8  already know what's cut out?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         10                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It's in the book, and

         11  we can probably give you what your district

         12  represents. But it's in the book on the State

         13  funding.

         14                 But the other thing that Lew

         15  mentioned that's important, it's not just the 1.8. I

         16  mean, Lew said that he felt foolish because this

         17  year wasn't in the plan. The 1.8 is just for the

         18  current fiscal year. There's also 1.7 for Fiscal

         19  Year '07 that isn't there. And I suggest that we at

         20  least, we look at both of those things, otherwise

         21  we're going to be in the same position next year.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, no, but

         23  we can't do that. That would be a foolish thing to

         24  do, if I may say so, because we need to keep their

         25  feet to the fire in the State. If we start to look
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          2  at the next year and trying to take care of the next

          3  year, the State is going to say, well, the City just

          4  took care of it. Let's take care of this year. Just

          5  like we did last year. Don't start trying to take

          6  care of next year, because that takes the coals away

          7  from the feet.

          8                 MR. TRAMONTANO: I would suggest that

          9  maybe there is a way that we can keep the pressure

         10  on the State, because the way we do our books, as

         11  the Mayor did today, he put a figure out there that

         12  he expects the State to give us money, $250 million.

         13  So, we can fund the program and say we expect the

         14  State to give us the money and adopt that as part of

         15  our budget. You don't have to actually come to a

         16  conclusion with that until June 30th, 2007. So there

         17  are other options.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And as members

         19  of the Education Committee, and you, of all people

         20  compared to the rest of the members, are going to be

         21  most in tune with this, and the other ones are going

         22  to be basically lost, and unless they're really

         23  reading the documents and what have you. So, it's

         24  very, very important, as far as the documents that

         25  we have given you, that if you and your Education
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          2  person look through those, and any questions reach

          3  out to the staff so you can be up to speed. It's

          4  extremely important.

          5                 And the direction that we go, I'm

          6  trying to work by consensus with the Committee and

          7  not just say that this is what we're going to do as

          8  a committee. That's not how it works. So, I'm trying

          9  to get a feel from you, and, also, we need to get

         10  direction from the Speaker and the leadership how we

         11  proceed.

         12                 So, it's extremely important that we

         13  stay, I guess, in tune together.

         14                 Any other questions or comments on

         15  the capital budget strategy and thoughts on that?

         16  Anyone?

         17                 Okay, I will throw out two dates.

         18  Thursday, the Education Committee, we have a 9:00

         19  meeting, right? Scheduled from nine to ten, a

         20  meeting with the Chancellor, over at the Tweed,

         21  okay? And I think Lew Fidler, or someone else

         22  mentioned that on February 27th, the Panel for

         23  Education and Policy, which some people call a

         24  "rubber stamp," is meeting to vote on the amendment

         25  to the five-year capital plan.
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          2                 Last year myself and about four or

          3  five other members went there to speak, so we're

          4  going to be basically encouraging members to

          5  participate in that process and to speak

          6  specifically about your district, and in general

          7  from a City Council perspective.

          8                 I do know that we will probably have

          9  people from the districts that I represent, the

         10  educational districts, which is community districts

         11  5 and 6, so we're asking people to look at that, as

         12  far as their schedule, on the 27th in the evening.

         13  February 27th, in the evening. That's when they're

         14  scheduled to meet. If, in fact, it changes, we will

         15  be e-mailing you and your contact so that you can

         16  change your schedule appropriately. But, in essence,

         17  we want to be able to show some force in the

         18  direction that we move, okay?

         19                 Any other questions or comments on

         20  that?

         21                 Hearing topics. Quickly, the

         22  Translation Bill, which was vetoed by the Mayor in

         23  January of 2005, will come back to us as an

         24  Education Committee.

         25                 As you know, the process there, we
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          2  will not hold a hearing but we will accept it back;

          3  is that correct, Mark? We accept it back and vote --

          4                 MR. GOLDEY: At a hearing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: At a hearing, we

          6  can vote it out at the same hearing, and vote it out

          7  at the same hearing to go back to the full Council

          8  to determine whether or not we override the veto.

          9                 There were I think 35 members that

         10  had voted yes when we voted for that. I think 12, 11

         11  or 12 members voted no. I think that one member

         12  abstained, and there were about four or five members

         13  absent.

         14                 So, as far as overriding this

         15  particular action, we're going to have to come in

         16  sync and have discussions with other people in order

         17  to address that.

         18                 Go ahead, questions, Dan?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Next. For

         20  the benefit of the new folks, were there briefing

         21  materials when this came before the Committee and

         22  the Council the first time? And if so, how can we

         23  get our hands on that in advance of this coming

         24  back, so we can be prepared?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure.
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          2                 In fact, before that, as a matter of

          3  fact, we will get all the briefing material and send

          4  it out to everyone ASAP, even before we have a

          5  hearing so that you have the opportunity instead of,

          6  you know, two or three days before, you'll probably

          7  have it a week or ten days. In fact, do we have a

          8  hearing date scheduled yet? We're trying to have a

          9  hearing on February 13th, so which will be about two

         10  weeks from now.

         11                 In fact, the resolution that was

         12  passed around in the Democratic Caucus asking Pataki

         13  to fund CFE, that's one of the resolutions that's

         14  going to have a hearing on, along with reconsidering

         15  the Translation Bill. And part of the strategy of

         16  having that first, is because the weekend coming up,

         17  which is the Black, Puerto Rican and Asian Caucus up

         18  on Albany have their weekend, and we want to send a

         19  clear message to them, that's a huge body up there,

         20  that the City Council wants them to ratch up their

         21  opposition to the Governor, and ideally will hold a

         22  press conference of their, members of the City

         23  Council, up in Albany, in order to basically raise

         24  the bar as far as activity on CFE and getting our

         25  money due.
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          2                 That's why this resolution, we want

          3  to have a hearing right away on that particular

          4  matter. Any questions or comments on the Translation

          5  Bill and the resolution? Okay.

          6                 ACS and DOE. Those members that were

          7  sitting through the ACS hearing yesterday, you know,

          8  and Bill was chairing the meeting, quite a number of

          9  questions and discussion was about, you know, the

         10  timing of when DOE communicated to ACS, was there a

         11  trigger as far as number of days a child is absent

         12  before they send over a request to ACS to

         13  investigate because of what they term, or the system

         14  terms, "educational neglect." And if you read the

         15  New York Times today, there was a big discussion in

         16  there about that.

         17                 And I think that even the union

         18  person, which was the first panel after the

         19  Commissioner left, they indicated that in May and

         20  June, that's when basically everything is sent over,

         21  that's sort of like the peak period, because from

         22  their impression that DOE is basically getting it

         23  off their desk and throwing it to ACS, when May and

         24  June is almost the end of the school year. And one

         25  of the ACS workers, Child Protective Services
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          2  person, indicated, the question that I asked was,

          3  was there any case, and I asked the ACS

          4  Commissioner, where educational neglect reported to

          5  ACS exceeded 46 days, in essence, the Nixzmary Brown

          6  case? And they could not answer that question. I

          7  asked them to get back to us, but one of the Child

          8  Protective Specialists who was testifying in the

          9  panel afterwards, she said she had a case where

         10  there was over 60 something days where a child was

         11  absence before a report went over.

         12                 In my opinion, that's totally

         13  unacceptable.

         14                 And, so, we talked about, you know,

         15  since we focused in on ACS and making sure that we

         16  protect our children and timeliness, that we feel

         17  that bill, and we could talk about this maybe either

         18  jointly, or separately hold a hearing, because DOE

         19  needs to come to the table. And there was an

         20  interagency task force that's looking at a lot of

         21  the issues, and this may be one of them to discuss,

         22  but we feel that we need to have a hearing on that

         23  to be pretty thorough in our process on this.

         24                 Any question or comment on whether or

         25  not we should or should not?

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 Bill, could you just use the mike?

          3  Bill DeBlasio of Brooklyn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: I think it's

          5  crucial we do a joint hearing, because the entire

          6  thing that was dredged up yesterday is how these

          7  agencies on the ground level, I don't want to say

          8  they have disdain for each other, but they have

          9  fundamental problems working with each other. I

         10  think it's crucial to force everyone in the room

         11  together and start answering these questions. So,

         12  it's a high priority for General Welfare and

         13  hopefully we can work out a time line on this, but I

         14  think it's one of these situations where, the

         15  quicker we can do the hearing, the more likelihood

         16  that our having a hearing will force people to

         17  improve their practices in the here and now.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         20  Helen Foster.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you. I

         22  agree with Bill. And what I'd like to see is

         23  documentation, something from DOE as to what their

         24  policies are.

         25                 I know from my mother, who is a
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          2  retired elementary school principal, she had

          3  procedures in her school that she followed that

          4  weren't necessarily in line with DOE, in terms of

          5  what, you know, then it wasn't DOE because she

          6  retired in '93, but in terms of reporting when

          7  children don't come to school, or calling the police

          8  and things like that that kind of went above and

          9  beyond. And what would be helpful is if we can see

         10  the documentation, and something as simple, I didn't

         11  go to public school, I went to Knightengale,

         12  whenever I wasn't going to be there, you know,

         13  called the teacher, going to get your homework

         14  assignment; what type of policies are in place from

         15  the top of DOE having to do with -- you know, I

         16  think if a kid is not in school for a week, you

         17  should be concerned. And I know, you know, if you

         18  have asthma, or things that can cause you to be out,

         19  but after seven days or after three days, someone

         20  should be saying, hey, they're not there. So, 40 or

         21  60 days, clearly, is too much.

         22                 So, what I think would be helpful is

         23  a lot of times we have head hearings and DOE

         24  officials have come and said this is our procedure,

         25  this is what we do, and as you know, the old Chair
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          2  would say, okay, where is it written? Well, it's not

          3  really written. Or to say things which aren't

          4  helpful for me in my district, that it's on the

          5  website.

          6                 Okay, my parents don't have access to

          7  a computer, so it being on a website isn't helpful.

          8                 Is it in Spanish? No, we're looking

          9  for a translator. Well, not having it in Spanish for

         10  kids, you know, parents in the district aren't

         11  helpful.

         12                 So, something that we can document

         13  where they are in terms of these procedures would be

         14  helpful.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In fact, in a

         16  pre-meeting of the Education staff and myself

         17  yesterday, we discussed this, and we're already

         18  communicating or will be communicating in writing to

         19  them, asking for their procedures so we have them

         20  way in advance. We can look at those. So we've

         21  already started that. And, Bill, we'll work with you

         22  in order to have a joint meeting as quickly as

         23  possible, as soon as you want to have it and you're

         24  available, okay?

         25                 Any other questions on any hearing
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          2  topics?

          3                 Council Member Clarke.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Mr. Chair, I

          5  just wanted to say that those, I think you've hit on

          6  some great topics very early on. There is an issue

          7  that has come to my attention. Let me just admit

          8  from the outset that unfortunately I did not

          9  complete the survey. I did have knowledge of it, but

         10  I will admit that I have not done my survey as of

         11  yet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Shame on you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: There is,

         14  however, an issue very similar to the ACS issue that

         15  I just want to put onto your radar, and it has to do

         16  with the population that we don't think of often,

         17  which are the young people who would typically be in

         18  our Alternative to Detention programs. The

         19  Department of Correction has ended those programs.

         20  And part of their rationale for it was problems they

         21  were having with their leased space for their

         22  students to be educated in, and the fact that they

         23  have been cited, and a whole bunch of other issues.

         24                 And unfortunately, the Alternative to

         25  Detention Programs are run through the Department of
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          2  Probation in relationship to the Department of

          3  Education, and in light of the challenges that they

          4  have leasing space, they didn't have a plan B. They

          5  didn't have a plan B. Their thinking is to move into

          6  the contracting non-profit sector for what has

          7  happened now is that the judges only have a choice

          8  between locking these kids up in the juvenile

          9  detention facilities or letting them go. Which means

         10  that still there's some challenges around education,

         11  if they're involved in the Family Court system.

         12                 So, I just wanted to bring that to

         13  your attention. It's not quite the same as ACS, but

         14  it is an inter-agency issue that I think is worthy

         15  of us taking a look at to see whether we can be

         16  helpful in that regard.

         17                 And I know that there are employees

         18  of the Department of Probation that have been

         19  involved with the Alternative to Detention Programs

         20  and also have an eye to DOE, because they see DOE as

         21  a means of helping them to help these young people

         22  that are in their care.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, that's why

         24  we put the survey out to assess the members so we

         25  can try to look at the short-term and long-term
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          2  things that we want to have hearings on, and Mark is

          3  going to discuss that.

          4                 But let me turn to Jessica, she has a

          5  point to raise.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I was just

          7  going to ask if we were going to move on to -- okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes. Okay.

          9                 Mark Goldey is going to give you a

         10  briefing as to the number of surveys, what the

         11  topics are and as far as responses that we got back.

         12                 Mark.

         13                 MR. GOLDEY: Thanks. We received back

         14  from the entire Council body 27 responses.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Out of 51.

         16                 MR. GOLDEY: Out of 51. Some quite

         17  detailed, some less so. The staff, we sat down and

         18  we tried to compile people's responses into

         19  categories that made sense, and it was helpful in

         20  that, you know, being familiar with some of the

         21  issues and some of the Council members, I had a

         22  sense of what they were getting at as they raised

         23  issues. And so what we were able to do is to say

         24  that the top issue on everyone's mind is school

         25  safety, school capacity, things like that.
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          2                 The chart which is right there behind

          3  Council Member Clarke lists the top seven or eight

          4  topics on people's minds, and they are more or less

          5  in order. School safety, the issue of parental

          6  involvement, in light of the restructuring of the

          7  Department of Education, whether parents still have

          8  a voice. Space capacity, overcrowding, class size

          9  could go there too. There is a great interest in

         10  student health, typically asthma, obesity. Lack of

         11  school quality good choices in middle school. And

         12  high school is really the same issue, but for some

         13  reason that did not come up in the surveys.

         14                 Use of technology in classrooms and

         15  computers. Testing how it's being used and what it's

         16  being used for and how it's being done; and,

         17  finally, after school programs, which went through a

         18  significant reform, about 12 or 18 months ago. And I

         19  think the question is what are they actually doing

         20  now, how is that working out?

         21                 So, those were the topics of most

         22  interest to the Council members, not necessarily to

         23  the members of the Education Committee.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Questions or

         25  comments?
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          2                 Go ahead, Jessica.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I sent back my

          4  survey yesterday. I'm not sure if it was

          5  incorporated or not. And I just wanted to add, maybe

          6  this falls under student health issues, sex

          7  education is something that's important to me for

          8  our young women. Sex education and knowledge is

          9  power, and I think for women that's a basic part of

         10  your general overall health, and I think in terms of

         11  teen pregnancy. I just think it's an important

         12  issue, so I wanted to throw that out there, and

         13  maybe that's incorporated into student health, but

         14  I've heard talk from the Mayor and from some of his

         15  commissioners, I mean Frieden said something at a

         16  lunch I was at, that he was, you know, implementing

         17  a new sex education policy, or that they were

         18  looking at that. Since I am new I don't know if

         19  you've already been working on that, but it was new

         20  information to me. I think that's important that

         21  we're involved in that, and monitoring that.

         22                 MR. GOLDEY: Thank you. That's a topic

         23  that had been on the Committee's calendar before,

         24  and it was bumped several times because other

         25  issues. And the issue of sex ed in health is
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          2  something that the Committee has not looked into in

          3  some time, and particularly AIDS education, which is

          4  mandated by State law, and we had students come in

          5  and testify that they never received any AIDS

          6  education whatsoever.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: In light of

          8  Alido (phonetic) making it to the Supreme Court,

          9  this is more important than ever, especially in

         10  areas of dealing with teen pregnancy. You would be

         11  amazed how many young girls are getting pregnant,

         12  not know what kind of, you know, kind of the myths

         13  that you heard, I didn't know I could get pregnant

         14  on my first time, or just ridiculous -- not

         15  ridiculous, because if you don't know, you don't

         16  know. So, it is an important topic that maybe we

         17  need to bump back up.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think that

         19  there is a list, as I indicated earlier, and some of

         20  you may have come in after I went through that.

         21  There was a list of all -- and you should have it in

         22  front of you. If you don't, we'll be glad to get you

         23  a copy. Of all of the hearings that were held in the

         24  previous, by the previous chair and the dates they

         25  were held, and even if they were held. You know,
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          2  oversight is one of the primary responsibilities of

          3  this Committee, and going back to follow up on, so

          4  if you look at those and say which committees you

          5  feel we should immediately or in the short term or

          6  long term should have oversight again, I want you to

          7  list those so we can focus as a Committee.

          8                 But I do think that Jessica, in

          9  response to sex education, I think that there was a

         10  Citywide organization, I understand approximately

         11  two weeks ago, that -- three weeks ago, that sent

         12  out a notice they were having a forum on that. Is it

         13  tomorrow night? Could you just speak on that, if you

         14  don't mind?

         15                 Jennifer. Jennifer is a Policy

         16  Analyst with the Committee.

         17                 MS. CULP: Thank you. I believe it's

         18  the New School, the New York City Affairs Division

         19  is going to be having a forum tomorrow night on West

         20  13th regarding the new sex ed curriculum that New

         21  York City is implementing.

         22                 If you need further information, I

         23  can certainly forward you that.

         24                 I will be attending, so I can also

         25  forward you any notes that you may need.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          3  Clarke, and Council Member DeBlasio.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair.

          6                 Just a slight deviation from what

          7  both Council Member Lappin and Council Member Foster

          8  brought up.

          9                 I know that we as a Council put

         10  dollars into a study on sexual assault in the

         11  schools, and I think that sex education, to a

         12  certain degree helps to address some of the

         13  behaviors that our young people don't recognize as

         14  being abusive, or may, but don't know how to deal

         15  with it or cope with it in the City.

         16                 What we found, because we did a joint

         17  hearing, was that they didn't have a proper protocol

         18  in place to deal with those types of behaviors,

         19  particularly in the middle school, but in the high

         20  schools either.

         21                 So, maybe there's a way that we can

         22  look at where that study is, in addition to having

         23  DOE address that whole issue.

         24                 We got into this issue because I had

         25  looked at the fact that we were having some
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          2  challenges in our correctional system around dealing

          3  with sexual predators, and what we found was that

          4  the younger you can catch certain behaviors, the

          5  ability to address changes and modification and

          6  behavior of a potential predatory is best when

          7  they're young, because once they reach a certain

          8  age, it's very hard. There's no clinical method

          9  changing that behavior.

         10                 And, so, you know, you could be

         11  building a class of individuals that live amongst us

         12  that have a behavior that, you know, we have no real

         13  control over, but the younger we can address it, you

         14  know, the better off we are as a society.

         15                 So, I just wanted to put that on your

         16  radar, as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         18  DeBlasio.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Okay. First

         20  of all, I wanted to say, reading over what the

         21  Committee did in the last four years, I had the

         22  honor of serving on the Committee, it's really very

         23  impressive to see it all put together, and everyone

         24  should be proud of it. Mark, you should be proud of

         25  it, you played.
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          2                 Mr. Chair, I'm glad, though, that the

          3  things the old Committee did not do was have this

          4  kind of session to talk about direction together. I

          5  really appreciate you doing that, and I think it's

          6  one of the things we need to do to get even better

          7  at this work.

          8                 On the list here, the consensus list,

          9  I just want to say, I want to highlight, because I

         10  feel very strongly that we're not shining enough

         11  light on the centralization situation and the parent

         12  involvement situation, and my personal suggestion

         13  would be that where we can do hearings that might

         14  shake things up, I know you believe in shaking

         15  things up, that there are a thousand topics, as you

         16  see here, I think we have to be mindful of where we

         17  might make a particularly big impact. I'm talking to

         18  parents all the time who are feeling more and more

         19  disconnected because of the results of Mayoral

         20  control and centralization. We know that community

         21  councils are not functioning, we know the Education

         22  Priorities Panel is a rubber stamp. I mean, I think

         23  we have to shine the light now after this many years

         24  of experimentation related PTAs not functioning all

         25  over the place, not getting support, you know, not
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          2  getting recruitment help, whatever, I feel that's a

          3  separate topic we really can make an impact with.

          4                 I just want to note on middle school,

          5  I am increasingly concerned, it's still the sector

          6  that falls through the cracks, and the more

          7  attention we put on what is being done to produce

          8  quality new middle school programs the better. And

          9  on testing.

         10                 We did talk about a fair amount in

         11  the old Committee. I don't think we had shaken

         12  things about saying how much are we teaching to the

         13  test and how much is becoming too dominant in our

         14  curricula, and I think that would be a very valuable

         15  topic.

         16                 Finally, on after schools, compendium

         17  of programs we have in place, the whole evolution

         18  with OST, and what we are doing and not doing with

         19  child care and with pre-k. I think something that

         20  looks at where all this is leading, because we

         21  certainly know there is a lot of problems there with

         22  OST, and we also know that pre-K is far from

         23  universal. I think that would bring value.

         24                 And just to mention some additional

         25  things. I think I had some of them on the survey and
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          2  a couple I got just from taking a look here. I think

          3  drop-out rate was really brought up, and some of

          4  this you could see in these topics as well. I want

          5  to say explicitly, drop-out rate was really clearly

          6  brought up in the Mayoral campaign, it was one of

          7  the few good things that came out of the Mayoral

          8  campaign, in terms of public debate. I think that

          9  should be a relatively early topic, because I think

         10  there's actually some public interest once again in

         11  just how high it is.

         12                 I just also want to note that the

         13  admissions process in general, high school, middle

         14  school. I know in my district there's tons of

         15  confusion about the process to this day, and a lot

         16  of parent frustration that that's been an area where

         17  the information flow was really bad, and some place

         18  where I think, again, us shining light might causes

         19  changes that could happen quickly.

         20                 On the textbook problem, we did look

         21  at in the Committee in the past, I think there are

         22  still so many gaps that we could be addressing.

         23                 And just two other things I'd like to

         24  mention. I think vocational education is another

         25  area that, you know, has still not kind of blossomed
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          2  in the public policy debate in this City, but it's

          3  truly needed for a lot of kids and deserves that

          4  attention.

          5                 And finally, I think you talked

          6  about, or someone talked about earlier, that in

          7  terms of physical education and gym space and all, I

          8  see this in a lot of places, it's hurting the

          9  quality of the education we give, particularly for

         10  elementary and middle school kids to not have any

         11  gym space and not have any outlets, and I think that

         12  gets lost a lot in the school planning process and

         13  the capital process, that that's a piece that needs

         14  to be backfilled in a lot of places, or schools need

         15  to be reconfigured to allow for that. I think that's

         16  worth a hearing at some point as well. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Jessica. Jim.

         18  Ladies first, right, Jim?

         19                 Jessica to Jim.

         20                 Before you leave, I just want to say

         21  the results for these surveys will be e-mailed and

         22  given to all of you members of the Education

         23  Committee, so you can see the whole entire list,

         24  okay?

         25                 Jessica.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I just wanted

          3  to piggy-back on what Council Member DeBlasio said.

          4                 And maybe this is something you have

          5  already done, but would be interesting to me, when

          6  you're talking about health care issues like

          7  diabetes, and that may be related to playgrounds and

          8  recreational space. And I know this Committee did a

          9  report about the lack of playgrounds and gyms in the

         10  schools, but you know, how does that breakdown

         11  neighborhood-by-neighborhood? Which communities have

         12  the fewest number of gyms? Does that correspond to

         13  diabetes rates, asthma rates, other obesity issues?

         14  And maybe that's something the Committee has already

         15  done, but that would be interesting as well, in

         16  terms of what areas of this City are most in need of

         17  those facilities, and the pre-k issue, which is

         18  something else that I put on my questionnaire, and

         19  even know the district that I represent is fairly

         20  affluent, I was surprised by how many people came up

         21  to me over the course of my campaign, I don't know

         22  if you had the same experience, saying even if I

         23  could afford to get my kids into the pre-schools, I

         24  couldn't get them in, and I can't afford it anyway.

         25  And there is very little, I was surprised by the
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          2  access to Universal Pre-K, even in a good part of

          3  town, so to see what it's like in different

          4  communities across the City would be very

          5  interesting.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Jim Vacca of the

          7  Bronx.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Yes. I wanted

          9  to dovetail for a second on something I mentioned in

         10  my questionnaire that I think Council Member Clarke

         11  touched on; and that was, character education.

         12  Building character education for our kids.

         13                 I mentioned in my questionnaire I

         14  want something in the back of my mind or up front,

         15  very honestly, something to curriculum in K to 12

         16  that teaches children self-respect, self-esteem,

         17  brotherhood, sensitivity to others, included in that

         18  are bullying and why not to bully and what bullying

         19  means.

         20                 I think behavior in our schools has a

         21  lot to do with what's going on in the intermediate

         22  schools today and the high schools as well, and I

         23  think that we have to instill in children at a very

         24  young age why it's important to behave, why if they

         25  don't behave, or what if they don't behave will be
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          2  the impact on the fellow students and on their

          3  chances to advance academically.

          4                 So, I call it character education.

          5  I'm open to other names, but I think we have to look

          6  into that and have a K to 12 curriculum.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Any

          8  other questions or comments on suggestions?

          9                 You see Jan is jotting those all

         10  down, and, you know, we're going to try to get this

         11  all to the Education Committee so that, you know,

         12  when we move forward, we're trying to move forward

         13  with consensus that the majority of the members want

         14  to see.

         15                 I think that one of the things that I

         16  plan on doing, especially for the Education

         17  Committee members, going to give you a weekly

         18  digest, either by e-mail, or paper. E-mail or paper

         19  or maybe both. Because sometimes you want to see the

         20  actual article, that has pictures in it, what have

         21  you and so forth on issues on education. So, we're

         22  just trying to work on the details of that. Every

         23  Monday morning or whatever we're going to get you a

         24  weekly digest of all of the Education articles out,

         25  not only locally, in the State and some around the
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          2  country, so that you can see what's going on in the

          3  City of New York, in the State of New York, and

          4  different parts of the country. And especially at

          5  the Education members, you just need to be in tune

          6  with that. So, we're going to try to get that to you

          7  on a weekly basis.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: One thing, Mr.

          9  Chairman?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Can I add to

         12  that also, which I had mentioned, but I know the

         13  Committee would want to discuss, is adult education.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: And what are we

         16  doing about continuing ed for our adult population.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         18                 That's on the list. Any other

         19  questions or comments or anything else we need to

         20  discuss in our organizational meeting?

         21                 Has everyone filled out all of their

         22  contact info, information sheet? Where is it?

         23  Contact sheet. Ingrid. Talk to Ingrid.

         24                 Hey, some of you may have come late.

         25  Let me just introduce Helen and others to staff of
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          2  the Committee so you know. Mark Goldey, as I

          3  indicated earlier, he's the Counsel to the

          4  Committee. But Mark is going to be leaving soon.

          5  He's just waiting for his papers. And Scherazade.

          6                 What's your last name again?

          7                 MS. SALIMI: Salimi.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Salimi is --

          9  Council member? Council member, Scheherazade is

         10  Counsel to the Committee, and she is working.

         11                 And Jennifer is the Policy Analyst.

         12                 Jennifer, what is your last name

         13  again?

         14                 MS. CULP: Culp.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Culp.

         16                 And Jan Atwell is a Policy Analyst.

         17  And Ingrid is the Senior Policy Analyst.

         18                 Ingrid is on until approximately June

         19  or July. She is going to law school. Ask her. She's

         20  right there. She's right there. Georgetown.

         21                 And Yejima (phonetic) is a Finance

         22  Policy Analyst on the Education Committee.

         23                 So, that's right now, that's the

         24  Education Committee staff, okay?

         25                 Was there anything else? That's it.
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          2  Thank you very much. We'll talk soon.

          3                 Meeting is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 4:30 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 31st day of January 2006.
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